MASTER AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE

BULLOCK CREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND THE

BULLOCK CREEK EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Duration of the agreement will be from August 26, 2019 – August 25, 2022 or the last day prior to the first teacher report day of the 2022-2023 school year, whichever is earlier

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	3
ARTICLE I RECOGNITION	3
ARTICLE II BOARD RIGHTS	5
ARTICLE III ASSOCIATION AND TEACHER RIGHTS	6
ARTICLE IV TEACHING HOURS	8
ARTICLE V TEACHING LOAD	11
ARTICLE VI REQUESTS FOR TRANSFERS	19
ARTICLE VII LEAVES	20
ARTICLE VIII SENIORITY	29
ARTICLE IX NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES	31
ARTICLE X CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS	32
ARTICLE XI PROTECTION OF TEACHERS	33
ARTICLE XII TEACHER RESPONSIBILITY	34
ARTICLE XIII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	36
ARTICLE XIV DEDUCTIONS	38
ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS	39
ARTICLE XVI COMPENSATION	44
ARTICLE XVII INSURANCE	66
ARTICLE XVIII REVIEW COMMITTEE	69
ARTICLE XIX DURATION OF AGREEMENT	70
APPENDIX 1-A	71
APPENDIX 1-B SUPERINTENDENT LEVEL	72
BOARD LEVEL	72
ARBITRATION LEVEL	72
APPENDIX 2 REQUEST FOR TRANSFER	73
APPENDIX 3 REQUEST TO DONATE PERSONAL DAYS	74
APPENDIX 4 REQUEST FOR TUITION REIMBURSEMENT	75
APPENDIX 5 MENTORSHIP AGREEMENT	76
APPENDIX 6 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OUTSIDE OF THE SCHOOL YEAR	77
APPENDIX 7 TEACHER SUBSTITUTING ON PREP HOUR REQUEST FOR COMPENSATION	78
APPENDIX 8 REQUEST FOR COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED PERSONAL DAYS	

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Bullock Creek Education Association, hereinafter called the "Association," and the School District of Bullock Creek, the County of Midland, Michigan, hereinafter called the "District."

The District, in accordance with the Consent Election of February 1966, has an obligation pursuant to the Public Employment Relations Act, Act 336 of the Public Acts of 1947 as amended to bargain with the Association as the representative of its teaching personnel with respect to hours, wages, terms, and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

- The District recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative in accordance with Act 336 of the Public Act of 1947, as amended, of all certified teaching personnel under contract with the District, excluding: Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Principal, Assistant Principal, Directors, Supervisors, Consultant-Coordinator and:
 - a. Building trades per memorandum dated 2/19/85.
 - b. Psychologist per memorandum dated 6/11/85.
 - c. Representation by and membership in the Teachers' bargaining unit do not include teachers/persons whose sole employment by the Bullock Creek School District is in any of the positions identified in Article XVI, Compensation, Section 2, Auxiliary Compensation or Temporary/Substitute Teachers.
 (This paragraph shall not apply if such classes become part of the regular school day program and follow the school calendar.)
 - d. The District recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative of all Guidance Counselors and ICT Coordinators employed by the District.
- 2. The term "Teacher" hereinafter used in this Agreement shall refer to all employees represented by the "Bargaining Unit" as above defined and reference to male/female, he/she, him/her shall include all gender identities for Teachers, unless specifically identified otherwise.
- 3. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any Teacher or the District rights he or it may have under the Michigan General School. Laws or other applicable laws and regulations. The rights granted to Teachers or the District

hereinafter shall not be deemed to limit any rights which any Teacher or the District would have in absence of this Agreement. The rights granted to Teachers hereunder shall be in addition to those provided elsewhere.

ARTICLE II BOARD RIGHTS

- 1. In order to carry out its responsibility for the development and operation of educational programs providing the best possible educational opportunity for the Bullock Creek School District with community resources, the Board retains and reserves unto itself all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in the Board by law, including but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:
 - a. To the exclusive management and control of the school system, its property and facilities.
 - b. To hire all employees subject to the provisions of law; to determine their qualifications, dismissal, demotion, suspension, or layoff; to determine the size of the working force; and to assign duties to, and to direct all employees.
 - c. To establish grades and courses of instruction, including special programs, and to provide for athletic, recreational, and social events for students, all as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board.
 - d. To decide upon the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials, and the use of teaching aids.
 - e. To determine services, supplies, and equipment.
 - f. To determine the number and location or relocation of its facilities, including the establishment or relocation of new schools, buildings, departments or divisions, or subdivisions thereof and the relocation or closing of offices, departments, divisions, or subdivisions, buildings, or other facilities.
 - g. To determine all financial practices and policies, including all accounting procedures, and all matters pertaining to public relations of the school system and its programs.
- 2. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, duties, and responsibilities by the Board and the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in the furtherance thereof, shall be the exclusive prerogative of the Board except as otherwise limited by express provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III ASSOCIATION AND TEACHER RIGHTS

- 1. The Association may request the use of school building facilities through the Building Principal or his/her representative for its meetings the same as any other school related group.
- 2. One bulletin board shall be provided in each school building on which the Association may post notices for its activities and matters of Association concern. A notice will be given to the Building Principal or his/her representative that material has been placed on this bulletin board. The Association may use the District mail service and Teacher mailboxes for communications to Teachers.
- 3. The District agrees that it is in the public interest to make available pursuant to a written request and within a reasonable time, information concerning the District in accordance with existing statutes.
- 4. The private and personal life of any Teacher is not within the appropriate concern or attention of the District as long as it is consistent with the standards of the teaching profession and the law.
- 5. A telephone shall be made available to Teachers for private conversations, confidential in nature and which apply specifically to student confidentiality. Toll calls on matters directly relating to student-teacher problems will be permitted with the approval of the Building Principal or his/her representative.
- 6. The Association may request the use of school facilities and equipment for Association related activities at reasonable times when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials, supplies, page charges, repairs and damages, if same applies incident to such use.
- 7. Each Teacher shall have the right upon reasonable notice to review the contents of his/her personnel files in the presence of the Administrator or designee charged with the custodianship of said records. A representative of the Association may, at the Teacher's request, accompany the Teacher in this review. Personal files are temporary in nature and will be purged after 18 months or as allowed for in PERA.
- 8. Any Teacher who shall be transferred to an administrative or executive position and shall later return to Teacher status shall be entitled to retain such rights as he/she may have had under this Agreement or the Tenure Act prior to such a transfer. Furthermore, any Administrator or Executive returning to Teacher status will only return with the seniority that he/she accumulated as a Teacher within the bargaining unit.

9.	Teachers choosing to attend the monthly after-school Association meeting will be allowed to leave at the end of the student day, if necessary, to permit sufficient time to drive to the meeting.	

ARTICLE IV TEACHING HOURS

- 1. A normal scheduled day for Teachers shall be 7 hours and 20 minutes. On Friday or days preceding holidays or vacation, the Teachers' day shall end at the close of the student day, providing that the Teacher shall in no way be exonerated from his/her responsibility of completing necessary work and leaving his/her room and material in proper order. The 7 hours and 20-minute school day shall be defined in the following manner:
 - a. All teachers will be required to report to assigned work site before the student day begins. Report and end times for the Teacher will be determined by the Building Administrator, but shall not exceed 20 total minutes before and after the students' official day.
 - Elementary. The first fifteen (15) minutes of the student day shall be used as interactive time between the Teacher and students. This time shall be used to assist students with cognitive and affective needs.
 - ii. Secondary. Fifteen (15) minutes prior to the official start of the students' day will be used as interactive time between Teacher(s) and students.
 - b. The remaining 6 hours and 45 minutes of the day will be assigned to the Teacher in the classroom, preparation time, lunch, travel, hall-passing time, etc., in accordance with the Master Agreement.
- 2. All Teachers are to be granted a duty free lunch period of thirty (30) minutes, subject to schedule by the Principal.
- 3. Elementary Teachers will not be required to be in the classroom when special Teachers of music, physical education, art, comprehensive guidance, and library are scheduled and present to take over their classes the intent of which is to give approximately three hundred (300) minutes preparation time per week to elementary Teachers. The District acknowledges that <u>all</u> classrooms, regular and special, need appropriate supervision when staff is absent and that the supervision is acceptable in accordance with the Michigan Department of Education (MDE). The District acknowledges that this may mean that classroom coverage is by administration, or others, so that all instructional minutes can be counted to the State required total of instructional minutes and provide appropriate preparation time for all classification of Teachers in accordance with the Master Agreement.

- 4. Elementary Preparation time will be 300 minutes. A schedule will be developed by the administration to ensure a regular daily prep time that teachers will be responsible for walking students to and from the Special. There will be four minutes added to lunch as a 20 minute recognition of time taken out of their 40 minute prep period. This will make lunch preparation twenty-four (24) minutes each day. On a normal scheduled day, Special Teachers will be given prep time as nearly equal as possible to the prep time of classroom elementary teachers. It is understood that due to various scheduling matters and different start and end times, specials teacher may not have a daily uninterrupted 40 minutes of prep time. (if a specials teacher has a day that a 40 minute block of prep is not available- they will not be responsible for the student contact time on that day.) Special Teachers in elementary music, physical education, art, and librarians shall be entitled to the same released time from classroom instruction as specified in Paragraph 3 above and Paragraph 5 below. It is further understood that as part of their regular assignment, Special Teachers may be assigned playground and lunch supervision if instruction time is not exhausted. In such instances, those duties will be counted as instructional time.
- 5. Elementary Teachers will be relieved of playground duty and supervision of lunchroom during noon hour. The purpose of this released time is to provide additional preparation time for each elementary classroom Teacher during each day.
- 6. Teachers may be required to participate per calendar month in five hours of meetings, committees, or committee work outside of the regular school day. Participation in any meetings, committees, or committee work outside of the five-hour period shall be voluntary at the Teacher's discretion.
 - a. Teachers must be notified in writing two workdays prior to such meetings.
 - b. Each spring, Building Administrators will seek input from the Teachers as to the most advantageous day(s) of the week to schedule the next year's regular meetings.
 - c. Teachers should make these meetings a priority; however, if a conflict requires the Teacher to be unable to attend the meeting, it is his/her responsibility to seek prior approval of absence from the Building Administrator. The Building Administrator will direct the Teacher as to how or when the content of the meeting missed will be acquired, based on an individual's professional needs.
- 7. On a voluntary basis with the mutual agreement of a Teacher and his/her Administrator, a class may be offered at an alternative time to the regular school day.

- a. The Teacher's normal work week shall remain at 36 hours 40 minutes.
- b. The Teacher's normal teaching load per semester shall remain as designated in Article V.
- c. The Teacher shall be entitled to all normal lunch and preparation periods.

8. Professional Development:

- a. Teachers will be required to acquire the professional development hours as mandated by the State of Michigan with the assistance of the District.
- b. All new Teachers will be required to attend Orientation Day scheduled prior to the beginning of the school year.
- c. Attendance at any professional development meeting outside of the defined school year is voluntary for all Teachers. The form in Appendix 6 will be completed and turned into administration for the above work request. The staff member may sign to indicate willingness to participate. Teachers attending such meetings which have previously been approved by the Administration will be compensated .085% of the B.A. base salary as an hourly rate.
- 9. When a teacher is required to travel during the school day between building assignments, the Superintendent, a Building Administrator from the building assignment, the traveling Teacher and Association President will meet to determine the amount of travel time needed to move from one assignment to another.

ARTICLE V TEACHING LOAD

- 1. Secondary (grades 6-12) Teaching Hours
 - a. The normal daily teaching load shall be five (5) academic classes.
 - b. Each Teacher will be assigned at least one (1) preparation period equal to the length of a normal class period. In cases where it is necessary for a Teacher's assignment to include classes at both the Middle School and High School, a request may be made to the Preparation Committee for a split preparation period.
 - c. Any preparation periods scheduled at the end of the day may, at the Teacher's discretion, be shortened on Fridays or days before holidays in order to accommodate Article IV, paragraph 1. Any Teacher leaving before the normal departure time must notify the Building Administrator prior to departure.
 - d. The normal number of preparations per semester, whenever possible, will be three (3) or less and the number of preparations will be distributed as nearly equal as possible within High School departments and among Teachers in the Middle School. A co-taught and regular education course concerning the same subject shall count as the same preparation.

No Teacher will have more than three (3) preparations per semester unless he/she has taught three (3) of the preparations during the previous two (2) year period.

In cases where a Teacher voluntarily transfers wholly or partially from the Middle School to the High School or vice versa, a request may be submitted to the Preparation Committee for that Teacher to accept more than the negotiated number of new preparations. New hires may be handled in the same manner. Such a request shall be submitted by the District in writing to the chairperson of said Committee and shall allow adequate time for consideration by the Committee.

e. This provision shall not prohibit the institution of homeroom or advisement groups providing that supervision of such groups by the faculty shall not entail more than two hours per month in secondary schools. It is agreed by the parties that the individual Teacher will not be responsible for any preparation regarding a homeroom.

- f. Definition of Preparation—Act or process of making ready to teach a particular course. Two or more sections of the same course would be considered only one preparation. Each different course taught would be considered a different preparation.
- g. The Preparation Committee shall consist of the Teacher whose assignment is in question (or his/her designee), a member of the Association's Negotiation Team, a member of the Association's Negotiation Committee, a member of the Association's Executive Committee, one other Teacher, and the Building Principal. Except for the particular Teacher whose assignment is being considered, the Association President shall appoint committee members with approval of the Executive Committee.

The Preparation Committee shall convene by request to consider deviations from the Contract norm as outlined in Paragraphs 1., b. and d. of this Article. Approval or denial of requested deviation(s) will be given in writing to the District by the Association based on a majority vote of the Preparation Committee members.

2. Elementary Teaching Hours

- a. The normal teaching load in the elementary school shall consist of a maximum of 25 hours and 15 minutes per week of in-class instruction time with the length of period and frequency of recitation to be determined by the Teacher and Principal.
- b. The 25 hours and 15 minutes per week of elementary instruction time does not include supervision of students before and after school, when students are eating lunch, noon recess, or the time when students receive instruction from special teaching personnel, such as music, physical education, art, comprehensive guidance, and library. The elementary instructional time is time spent by a classroom Teacher providing instruction for his/her class. In no case shall this be interpreted in such a way to exceed the school day for Teachers as defined in Article IV Paragraph 1.
- c. Instruction time for special teaching personnel, such as music, physical education, art, comprehensive guidance, and library shall be clearly defined in the beginning of each school year. The input and participation in the process shall include the personnel impacted by such decision, the Elementary Principals, and an Association representative.
- d. Diagnostic Reading Lab Conditions

- i. The thirty minutes of preparation time per week being offered the diagnostic reading lab bargaining unit member participants are additional minutes scheduled for the members beyond the contracted elementary preparation time of 300 minutes per week as defined in Article IV, Section 4.
- ii. This additional preparation time will be used for the purpose of collaborating lesson planning with the diagnostic reading lab teachers and is the main criteria used by the Administration for determining this extra needed preparation time for the program's success.
- ii. Unit members participating in the diagnostic reading lab will not be asked to prepare instruction for their classroom during the weekly thirty minute preparation time. During this thirty minute preparation time, a certified bargaining unit member will be instructing the regular classroom to allow for this additional release time from instruction.
- iv. In addition, when the bargaining unit, diagnostic reading lab teacher is absent, an appropriate substitute will be provided and available in the lab during the Teacher's absence. Other Teachers in the building will not be pulled from their regular assignments to cover as substitutes for the diagnostic reading lab teacher.
- v. The additional thirty minutes preparation time per week will only be given to diagnostic reading lab bargaining unit member participants. If the program were to be discontinued, all elementary members will be given the preparation time of 300 minutes per week as defined in the Master Agreement.
- vi. If a diagnostic reading lab program were to be offered in any other building in the Bullock Creek School District, the bargaining unit members participating in the program will be scheduled the same additional thirty minutes per week preparation time as the Floyd Elementary program members are being scheduled.
- 3. The overall student to classroom Teacher ratio shall not exceed thirty (30) to one (1). In addition, the total number of students in a single classroom shall not exceed thirty (30) with only one (1) Teacher in said classroom. Exceptions to this shall be the gym classes which will be limited to thirty-eight (38); music classes which shall be limited by mutual agreement of the Principal, Association representative and the instructor, and keyboarding classes which shall be limited to thirty-five (35), and multiple grade regular

elementary classrooms shall be limited to twenty-five (25). Young Fives classrooms will be limited to twenty (20). These ratios shall be complied with by each official state count day. Class size for kindergarten will be limited to twenty-five (25) students. The Teacher will be paid a stipend for every student over twenty-five (25) (up to twenty-seven (27) - Article V;D) if there is not a para assigned to the class. If a para is assigned- class size may go up to 30 and no stipend will be paid. Para will be assigned to 29 hours a week.

4. The distribution of students in classes shall be equitable as possible, with due consideration given to the following: distribution of students in the district; characteristics of the classes or subjects; individual student capacities and welfare; and administrative responsibility and effectiveness. A count day report indicating class sizes within each grade level across the District will be made available to the Association upon request. One of the topics to be discussed is classroom equity in regard to parent requests.

In grades 6 through 12, once students are placed according to contract limitations, in the event there are unusual circumstances where the class size exceeds the limit of thirty (30) student bodies any time after each official state count day, a committee will be established to discuss the situation and come to an agreement to allow an increase of the class size up to a limit of thirty-two (32) bodies. An exception to this will be for gym class, which will be limited to thirty-eight (38) bodies with a possible increase up to a limit of forty (40) bodies. The committee will consist of two Teachers in the grade level/building level department, a representative from the BCEA leadership, and up to three Administrators. For each student over thirty (30) in a grade 6 through 12 classroom, the teacher will be paid at a rate equal to .015 of step 1 of base salary per class period per term/semester. Pay will be provided to Teachers for overload students only after schedule adjustments have been completed in the first 10 days of each semester and only after the overloaded student(s) has been in the classroom for 5 days following the 10 day scheduling adjustment period. The stipend shall be paid in a lump sum on the pay period prior to the end of each term/semester of the overload.

- 5. In grades where the Administration groups children homogeneously by use of standardized tests, and when such groupings shall include groups designated by the Principal as low achievers, then such class shall be limited to fewer than twenty-five (25) students per classroom Teacher.
- 6. Teachers are expected to attend parent-teacher meetings when requested to do so by the Principal.
- 7. Adequate off-street parking facilities shall be provided, properly maintained, and identified exclusively for Teachers.

- 8. The board will make every effort to secure a substitute teacher in order to prevent situations that could cause regular staff to be used as a substitute. In the event of an emergency, which requires a Teacher to leave the classroom, another Teacher(s) may voluntarily substitute for him/her, at the Teacher's request, during his/her preparation period, in accordance with Article XV Section 19a and Appendix 7.
- 9. Instructional Consultation Team (ICT) program positions.
 - a. ICT facilitator and team member participation is voluntary, and teachers will not be placed involuntarily in these assignments by the District as a duty after school or during the regular school day.
 - b. The full-time facilitator of the ICT team will take on the majority of the case studies.
 - c. The full-time facilitator of the ICT process will follow a regular teacher's daily schedule for required report and end times of the day as defined in the Master Agreement and Article IV. 1.
 - d. The full-time facilitator will receive an equivalent amount of time as a regular elementary teacher would have for classroom instruction as provided in the Master Agreement in Article V., for facilitating the process, instructing teachers, planning with teachers for each case and/or whatever other duties related to the ICT process the facilitator determines necessary to accomplish the goals of the program.
 - e. The full-time facilitator or a part-time facilitator will not be pulled from their ICT duties to substitute for a teacher except for emergencies as defined in the Master Agreement in Article V. 8.
 - f. The full time facilitator of the ICT process will receive the same preparation time as a regular elementary teacher as provided in the Master Agreement, and that during this preparation time, the facilitator will be in charge of planning ICT team meetings, planning for team trainings, and planning for staff development through newsletters, updates, discussions and PowerPoint presentations.
 - g. Information about the cases of the ICT team will be kept confidential, and if any discussion on the case takes place outside of the team meeting or with the parties not involved in the ICT team process, then the participating Teacher(s) will be present.

- h. After-school hour professional development facilitation done by the full-time facilitator will be compensated at a rate of .085% of the base salary pay.
- i. ICT team members that are members of the Bullock Creek Education Association will be compensated at the Auxiliary Compensation rate defined in Article XVI. 2. c. Classification VII 1%.
- j. The future positions of the ICT facilitator team members and part-time ICT facilitator/part-time teacher positions job descriptions will be negotiated with the BCEA and the District.
- k. Any ICT training expected of any bargaining unit member will be paid at full expense to the District. This would include registration fees, travel expenses, accommodation expenses, meals, and other related expenses incurred as a result of the member participating in the training.
- I. The ICT facilitator would not be expected to be involved in the IST process.

10. Mainstreaming of Special Education Students and 504 students

- a. For the purpose of this paragraph, a mainstreamed student shall be defined as any student who has been properly screened by Individual Educational Planning Team (I.E.P.T) procedures, has a resultant individually prescribed educational program and has been integrated into a regular classroom.
- b. For the purpose of this paragraph, a 504 student shall be defined as any student who has been properly screened and has an approved 504 plan.
- c. At the elementary level, a student must be present in the regular education classroom greater than 2.5 hours during the school day to be considered a mainstreamed student for purposes of figuring class size.
- d. Students whose individually prescribed educational programs include only speech education, occupational therapy, and/or physical therapy shall not be considered mainstreamed students for purposes of figuring class size.
- e. One mainstreamed student shall be counted as two regular students for the purpose of determining class size. When two mainstreamed students are present in a classroom, they shall be counted as three regular students. If three are scheduled into a regular classroom, they will count as five students. If four are

- scheduled they shall count as six. For any additional students mainstreamed in the same classroom, the preceding ratios shall be repeated.
- f. One 504 student shall be counted as 1.25 regular students for the purpose of determining class size. When two 504 students are present in a classroom, they shall be counted as 2.5 regular students. If three are scheduled into a regular classroom, they will count as 3.75 students. If four are scheduled they shall count as 5. For any additional students with 504's in the same classroom, the preceding ratios shall be repeated.
- g. The number of mainstreamed students in any class by the Fall count day shall not exceed the state caseload limits for an L. D. Teacher.
- h. The distribution of mainstreamed and 504 students in K-5 classes shall be as equitable as possible at each grade level within a building by the Fall count day.
- i. If the maximum class size count is exceeded by the fifth day of student attendance, the District will honor a request initiated by the affected Teacher for paraprofessional (aide) assistance. If the maximum class size is exceeded during the school year by the addition of a new student the affected Teacher shall initiate a request within a five day period following the existence of conditions qualifying a Teacher for such assistance. All such requests must be made in writing to the Building Principal. The Principal shall have up to five student days after receiving the Teacher's request to provide the Teacher the required aide time. If a Teacher has been assigned a paraprofessional and the class size is subsequently reduced below the qualification point, the assistance provided will be rescinded.
- j. When the class size count exceeds the negotiated limits for an elementary classroom (Grades K-5), the Teacher may initiate a request for one (1) hour of paraprofessional (aide) assistance per day for each student over maximum.
- k. In the secondary classroom (Grades 6-12), the Teacher may initiate a request when a class section exceeds the negotiated limit for that class. One hour of paraprofessional (aide) assistance per week will be provided for a Teacher whose class size is one (1) student over maximum, or two (2) hours per week when it is two students over maximum, etc.
- 11. The Bullock Creek Board of Education and the Bullock Creek Education Association agree to the following standards regarding co-taught classes in the District:

- a. In a co-taught classroom where one regular education Teacher and one special education Teacher are assigned, the weightedness formula shall be waived.
- b. The total number of students in a co-taught classroom shall not exceed thirty (30) students.
- c. In the event there are unusual circumstances and the co-taught class exceeds the limit of thirty (30) students, a committee will be established to discuss the situation and come to an agreement. The committee will consist of the co-taught Teachers, a representative from the BCEA, and an Administrator.

ARTICLE VI REQUESTS FOR TRANSFERS

1. Requests by a Teacher for transfer to a different class, building, or position shall be made in writing, one (1) copy of which shall be filed with the Superintendent and one (1) copy shall be filed with the Association. The application shall set forth the reasons for transfer, the school, grade, or position sought and the applicant's academic qualification. Such requests shall be submitted by April 1, of the current school year to assure active consideration by the District for the following year. (See Appendix 2.)

ARTICLE VII LEAVES

- 1. At the beginning of each school year, each Teacher shall be credited with ten (10) days of paid leave, the unused portion of which shall accumulate. The leave days may be taken by a Teacher for the following reasons and subject to the following conditions:
 - a. Personal Illness or Disability—This "Sick Leave" applies only to absences resulting from illness, disability, or injury of the Teacher. A doctor's certificate or statement may be required after an absence of three (3) consecutive days.
 - b. Illness in the Immediate Family Immediate family includes mother, mother-in-law, father, father-in-law, grandparents, grandchild, spouse, child, sister, brother, or any other member of the immediate family unit living in the same household no matter what the degree of relationship. Not more than twenty (20) paid leave days may be used in any school year for family illness (five (5) days for unrelated adults) unless a life-threatening condition exists.
 - c. Death in the Immediate Family Limited to five (5) days per death. And the use of these five (5) days for the death of a spouse/domestic partner, parent, or child only will not be deducted from the bargaining unit member's accumulated paid leave total. Any additional bereavement days taken beyond the five (5) days granted above each death will be deducted from the member's accumulated paid leave. Domestic partner as used in this provision is limited to two (2) people who are involved in an interpersonal relationship sharing their domestic life as if married but are not legally married for at least one (1) year.
 - d. For the reason set out in i., ii, and iii., below a combined total of three (3) days can be used in any one (1) school year:
 - i. Death of someone not in the Teacher's immediate family.
 - i. Emergency—Any sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances demanding immediate action.
 - ii. Child born to or adopted by an immediate family member. Three (3) days is the total for d i, d ii, and d iii. The Teacher is not entitled to three (3) days under d i, three (3) days under d ii, and three (3) days under d iii.

- e. The disabling aspects of pregnancy during the school year shall be treated the same as any other illness or disability. If the pregnancy causes the Teacher to exhaust her accumulated paid leave total, the balance of her absence as determined by the attending physician will be granted without pay. All other benefits will be continued as per the Master Agreement.
 - i. After the above leave, the Teacher will provide a written notice to the District from the attending physician regarding her ability to resume the duties of her position.
- f. For all FMLA qualifying conditions, applicable paid leave days must be used. For those who purchase short-term disability insurance, bargaining unit members on short-term disability leave may choose, or not, to supplement their short-term disability benefit with paid leave days up to their net wages.
- 2. A Teacher who has exhausted his/her cumulative paid leave will be considered for a loan up to thirty (30) days of additional paid leave at the rate of five (5) days per year of employment for his/her own personal illness or temporary disability only. The decision of the Board will be final and non-grievable.
 - If the Teacher does not return to work after such days are granted, the extra salary compensation received by the Teacher will be paid back to the District in full within 90 days of the Teacher's resignation or retirement, except in the case of death and no reimbursement will be needed.
- 3. Each Teacher will be granted seven (7) personal days in each school year. Any unused personal days may be carried over to the next year, allowing an accumulation of eight (8) such days. If, at the end of a school year, there remains eight (8) personal days, such personal days shall become additional accumulated "Paid Leave" days as defined in Article VII, 1.

At the end of the school year, if a bargaining unit employee does not want to carry over unused personal days and does not want personal days to become additional accumulated "Paid Leave" days, the employee may be compensated for as many as five (5) personal days a year at the rate of \$35 a day. A form to request compensation for unused personal days will be filled out by the end of the school year and given to the Superintendent by June 1, of each year. The employee will then be compensated for these days in the last payroll of the fiscal year. See

Appendix 8.

Personal days will not be granted the first or last week of the school year, except in case of emergency or extreme circumstance. In those cases an application may be made to the Superintendent for an exception. The decision of the Superintendent is final and non-precedent setting. A maximum of three (3) Teachers at BCHS, BCMS and Floyd Elementary and two (2) Teachers at BCEL and Pine River Elementary may qualify for a personal day on any given day. Notice must be given to the Principal one

(1) week in advance, except in an emergency through electronic submission on Skyward and AESOP sub finder system.

No more than three (3) personal days may be used consecutively unless special permission is granted by the Superintendent. Requests should be in writing/email to the Superintendent.

Association members will be able to give a personal day to other Association members for unique and unusual circumstances with approval of Superintendent or designee and Association Representatives. There will be a limit of no more than four

- (4) days given to any one member at a time per year with a limit of twelve (12) days given to the Association as a whole to use per school year. (See Form in Appendix 3).
- 4. Each Teacher shall be furnished a statement at the beginning of each school year or an ongoing digital update in each paycheck setting forth his/her total unused accumulated paid leave. After notification by the Bargaining Unit Employee, any inaccuracies identified by staff will be corrected within ten (10) business days.
- 5. When time is requested for attendance at instructional conferences, conventions, and visitation, and if attendance is approved by the Superintendent, then the Teacher shall be paid for the excused absence. Ordinarily, visitation shall not be as a part of course credit.
- 6. Six (6) days or twelve (12) half-days will be granted to the Association for members to attend conferences providing other members of the staff will cover their classes so no expense will be incurred by the District. If classes are not covered, the Association will pay for a substitute Teacher. Any absences under this Article shall

be cleared with the Principal and proper arrangements made with the covering Teachers and reported to the Principal through the electronic submission on Skyward and AESOP sub finder system, at least five (5) days in advance.

7. The Board shall carry Worker's Compensation so that a Teacher disabled from an injury or disease due to his/her employment may receive medical attention, and weekly benefits. Such insurance shall cover all benefits required by Michigan's Worker's Compensation Act as well as to the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement System to insure that the Teacher receives appropriate service credit and eligible salary credit. If a Teacher uses his/her paid leave while on Worker's Compensation, it shall be deducted on a proportional basis only to the level of making the employee whole in net wages.

Every five (5) years beginning in 2019-20 school year, the BCEA will meet with the District in order to review the satisfaction in both parties with the coverage received from the Workers' Compensation Insurance policy provided by the District.

- 8. In case of paid absences, notification of the expected absence should be submitted to Skyward and the Sub System prior to 7:00 a.m. by elementary Teachers and at least one hour prior to the beginning class time by secondary Teachers on the day of the absence. Failure to meet this requirement may result in forfeiture of pay for the day. In the case where SubFinder is not operational, Teachers are directed to contact his/her Building Administrator. Personal days shall be submitted one week in advance except in an emergency. Days preceding or following a holiday/vacation or days during the first or last week of school require the Superintendent's approval.
- Daily deductions of salary (if any occur) will be figured by using the annual salary rate at the time of the absence divided by 192. The 192 days include the five paid holidays of Labor Day, Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Year's Day and Memorial Day.
- 10. A Teacher shall be allowed to be absent when called for jury duty. The absence for jury duty, school-related subpoena, or subpoenaed as a witness in a criminal trial will not be deductible from any other leave. The Board of Education will supplement his/her jury fee to the extent not to exceed what he/she would have received in net pay had he/she not have been compelled to appear for the court. Teachers excused from court appearances before noon during a school day, must report at school immediately upon being released by the court in order to receive pay under this paragraph.

If teachers are subpoenaed for reasons not listed above, notification must be given to the building principal and arrangements made for class coverage via either District provided substitute or coverage by fellow Teachers/Administrators and will not be deductible from any other leave.

11. Unpaid Leaves of Absence

a. FMLA leave shall be administered consistently with the law, and shall be calculated on a rolling backward basis unless otherwise required by law to eligible bargaining unit members.

b. Maternity Leave

- i. Maternity leave without pay may be granted to female Teachers wishing to take extended leave beyond a doctor noted maternity leave, or unpaid FMLA.
- i. A written request for maternity leave shall be submitted to the Board of Education.
- ii. Such a request shall specify a beginning date as well as a termination date of the leave.
- iv. Reinstatement shall be to the Teacher's former position or to a similar position for which she is qualified and certified.
- v. It is understood that the foregoing shall not supersede provisions for layoff or other provision of law or this Contract.
- vi. In the event of miscarriage or death of the object child of the leave, the leave of absence may be terminated upon request of the Teacher.
- vi. The Teacher may request in writing to the Board an extension of leave taken under this Article. Extension of leave will be at the discretion of the Board.
- vii. Upon reinstatement the Teacher taking leave hereunder will be entitled to accrued experience and paid leave accumulated prior to the start of said leave.
- c. Child Care and Child Adoption—A leave of absence for up to one (1) year may be granted to any Teacher for the purpose of child care or child

- adoption. Such leave whenever possible, should be requested at least ninety (90) days prior to the expected date of leave.
- d. Education Leave—A leave of absence for up to one (1) year may be granted to any tenure Teacher, who applies for the purpose of engaging in study at an accredited college or university in a field related to his/her professional teaching responsibilities.

e. Voluntary Leave

- i. A Teacher (or Teachers) may request a one-year unpaid leave of absence, provided such a leave will result in the financial benefit of the District. Voluntary leaves shall be granted or not granted, at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board's decisions are final and nongrievable.
- i. Such a request shall be in writing and shall be for the duration of a full school year. Generally it shall be submitted to the Board prior to May 1 of the calendar year in which the leave is to begin. One-year renewals may be requested in writing. Such leaves and renewals will be at the discretion of the Board.
- Any Teacher on voluntary leave shall be given credit for service to the District on the seniority list during the duration of the leave.
- iv. Voluntary leaves may be canceled by mutual consent of the Board and the affected Teacher.
- v. A Teacher on voluntary leave shall receive full benefits outlined in Article XVII.
- f. A Teacher may be granted the following leaves and shall be reassigned pursuant to Board policy.
 - i. Types of Leaves
 - 1. A leave for up to one year to participate in a state or federally funded grant.
 - 2. A leave for up to one year to hold public or appointed office.

3. A leave for up to one year to hold office in the Michigan Education Association or the National Education Association.

i. Provisions for Leaves

- 1. When a Teacher is granted a leave of one (1) year or less, his/her position shall be posted as a temporary vacancy. Said Teacher is also eligible to request a transfer to any other vacancy for which he/she is certified and qualified.
- 2. The extension of a leave cancels the "temporary" vacancy classification and the position will be posted as a vacancy.
- g. A Teacher may be granted the following leaves and upon return shall be assigned under the provisions of this Article, Section g, iii.
 - i. A leave for up to one year to take employment outside of K-12 education.
 - ii. Military leave consistent with law and the Uniform Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) shall be granted. Advance notice of uniformed service is required, unless military necessity prevents such notice or it is otherwise impossible or unreasonable. Leave length as allowed by law, or at least up to one year of service, whichever is longer, shall be automatic. Notice of return from active duty must be submitted to the Superintendent or designee as required by law. Placement will be consistent with the law, and the returning employee shall be paid at the salary level and have seniority as if he/she did not leave active employment.
 - A leave of absence of up to one year may be granted to any Teacher, upon written application, for the purpose of participating in Board approved exchange teaching programs in other school districts, states, territories, or countries, foreign or military teaching programs; the Peace Corps, or Teachers Corp. as a full time participant in such programs.

h. General Provisions for Leaves

Unpaid leaves for one (1) year shall be requested in writing. A date for the termination of the leave shall be specified in the request. For leaves of less than a full year, the written request shall specify the date the Teacher will return. A Teacher on an unpaid leave for a full year, wishing to return, must file a written notice with the Superintendent sixty (60) days prior to the return or in the case of a leave terminating at the end of a school year, no later than April 1 of the year the leave is to terminate.

- i. If requested by a Teacher in writing, unpaid leaves may be renewable annually only upon approval of the Board.
- ii. Upon recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board, at its own expense, may require a Teacher to submit to a physical or mental examination by a specialist approved by the Board to determine whether an involuntary sick leave is warranted.
- iv. A Teacher returning from an unpaid leave or an extension shall not receive credit toward any step increase for the time lost due to the leave, but upon return to duty shall get credit for the full semesters completed before leaving. He/she will also be entitled to paid leave accumulated prior to the start of said leave or extension of leave.
- v. If a Teacher does not comply with the above conditions, the right to such leaves and/or the right to return may be denied by the Board.
- 3. A leave of absence for up to one (1) year shall be granted to any Teacher whose personal illness extends beyond the period of accumulated sick leave. This medical leave may be granted upon presentation of a physician's statement that the Teacher is unable to continue in his/her position. It shall be within the right of the Board to have the Teacher examined by a physician, designated and paid for by the Board prior to granting such a leave. Should the first two physicians disagree as to the necessity of the leave, the Teacher shall be examined by a third physician, designated and paid for by the Board, whose decision shall be final in determining the need for the leave.

Any leave or leave extension shall be without compensation. However, during this period of up to one (1) year, the Board shall continue to pay the health insurance premium of the employee at the level that is covered at the time of request. If there is a change in coverage after the request, due to qualifying event for the request, the District will accept this change and cover its portion of the premium as stipulated in the contract and Hard Cap limits.

If, at the end of this period of up to one (1) year it is determined by the physician that the Teacher is unable to return to his/her position, the Board may grant an extension of up to one (1) year and, if granted, shall be responsible for paying one half (1/2) of the cost

of the employee's health insurance at the time of the extension as stipulated in the contract and Hard Cap limits. The employee on the health leave extension must prepay the cost of his/her portion of the health insurance before the premium due date or the Board has no obligation to continue coverage.

At the end of the extension of up to one (1) year, the Teacher must either return or resign unless a special extension is recommended by the Superintendent of Schools and approved by the Board of Education. The Board may request a second opinion by a physician designated and paid for by the Board prior to granting any leave extension of any kind. After an extended personal illness, the Teacher will present a statement from a physician approved by the Board that the Teacher is ready to return from medical leave.

The Teacher shall be reassigned pursuant to Board policy.

ARTICLE VIII SENIORITY

- 1. Seniority shall be defined as:
 - a. Total years of service to the School District in positions recognized and defined as part of the bargaining unit.
 - b. All other things, certification, and days employed, being equal, then the date of the initial employment contract with the School District shall prevail. If the date of initial employment is the same, all Teachers so affected will participate in a drawing to determine placement on the seniority list. The Association and Teachers so affected will be notified in writing of the date, place and time of the drawing. The drawing shall be conducted openly and at a time and place that will reasonably allow affected Teachers and Association representatives to be in attendance. The seniority list shall be posted in each building, with copies furnished to the Association at least ten (10) working days prior to November 20 and February 10.

It shall be the responsibility of each Teacher to promptly check the seniority list. If a Teacher or the Association does not believe that a Teacher's seniority. certification, or endorsement is correctly shown on the list, the Superintendent shall be notified, in writing, of the alleged error no later than ten (10) working days after November 20 and February 10, respectively. If no challenges are made within the allowed period, the seniority list shall be deemed to be accurate and the Board shall incur no liability (including back pay) for relying on such list. If the posted list is challenged, the Association will be notified by the Superintendent of said challenges. The parties will meet to produce a corrected accurate list. The corrected list will be posted within five (5) working days after the respective challenge period. When said corrected listing is approved in writing by the Association, then the seniority list shall be deemed to be accurate, and the Board shall incur no liability (including back pay) for relying on such list. Accurate seniority lists shall be frozen until November 20 and February 10, respectively. Updating of endorsement shall be allowed only during the seniority list challenge period. However, for notification purposes only, a Teacher may inform the Superintendent, in writing, of a change in certification (accompanied by proper documentation) at any time.

Teachers who are on leave during this time will be notified of their placement on the seniority list by certified mail sent to their last known mailing address. It is the responsibility of the Teacher to inform the school of his/her address or any change of address.

2.	Seniority shall not accumulate during a Board approved unpaid leave of absence, except Voluntary Leaves (see provision for Voluntary Leave – Article VII(12)(d)); Military Leaves (see Article VII(12)(f.ii.); and Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Leaves.

ARTICLE IX NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES

When both parties agree to negotiations during regular school hours, release time shall be provided for the Association's negotiating committee.

Neither party in any negotiations shall have any control over the selection of the negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other party. The parties mutually pledge that their representatives will be clothed with all necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals and make concessions in the course of negotiations.

Meeting dates and time of meetings will be established by mutual consent.

ARTICLE X CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS

- 1. The Association and the Board recognize that strikes and other forms of work stoppages by Teachers are contrary to law and public policy. The Association and the Board subscribe to the principle that differences shall be resolved by peaceful and appropriate means without interruption of the School program. The Association, therefore, agrees that its officers, representatives and members shall not authorize, instigate cause, aid, encourage, ratify or condone, nor shall any Teacher take part in any strike, slowdown or stoppage of work, boycott, picketing or other interruption or activities in the School system. Failure or refusal on the part of any Teacher to comply with a provision of this Article shall be cause for whatever disciplinary action is deemed necessary by the Board.
- 2. The Association and the Board agree that they will not knowingly engage in any unfair labor practice as defined by law or that it will not knowingly misrepresent any negotiation information made public during the course of bargaining.

ARTICLE XI PROTECTION OF TEACHERS

- 1. The Board of Education supports its Teachers acting within the Policies, By-Laws and Regulations of the Board of Education and Administrative Practices and Procedures. It is agreed that in any joint defense of any litigation, the Teacher may receive benefit of the Board of Education's legal counsel when the Teacher is not in violation of the above mentioned Policies, By-Laws, Regulations, Practices and Procedures and no ethical conflict of interest exists. If an ethical conflict of interest exists between the Teacher(s) and the District, an attorney other than the Board of Education's legal counsel will be provided under the EPL rider of the District's policy, if so allowed
- 2. The District recognizes its responsibility to give all reasonable support and assistance to Teachers with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline of students in the classroom, school and school grounds.
- 3. Teachers, in the course of their professional duties, need not disclose any written or oral confidential communications unless said disclosure is required by law.
- 4. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.
- 5. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any Teacher or group of Teachers shall be found contrary to the law, then such provision or application shall be null and void except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- 6. All individual contracts shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XII TEACHER RESPONSIBILITY

- 1. Teachers shall not leave a class unattended except in an emergency. They shall be responsible for the supervision of students on the school grounds as well as in the school building except when released by other provisions of this Agreement.
- 2. Teachers are to be responsible for the supervision of their assigned stations of duty at all times unless otherwise directed by the Principal or his designee. It shall be the Teacher's responsibility to supervise students and not condone student behavior which is contrary to School policy.
- 3. A Teacher shall ensure that all sides of a controversial issue are presented equally. It shall be the Teacher's responsibility to determine to the best of his/her ability that the topics and materials used will be appropriate to the maturity-level and intellectual ability of the students. Teachers shall be responsible for creating and maintaining conditions conducive to learning.

4. School Closings

- a. Attendance at schools shall not be required for Teachers on scheduled days when the District declares the schools are closed. Bargaining unit employees who have pre-scheduled leaves of absence, paid or unpaid, will not be charged for these days of absence. No deduction will be made from an employee's accumulation of paid leave or personal days, nor will it count against FMLA leave. Bargaining unit employees shall notify the business office of any discrepancies within a reasonable amount of time.
- b. There shall be no deviation in the school calendar except by the mutual agreement of the Board and the Association. The parties will add days/hours of student instruction to the calendar, to make up so called "Act of God" days/hours lost beyond the minimum number of hours required by the State. Such days/hours will be scheduled by mutual agreement of the Board and the Association. If there are any non-student Teacher days which fall during the remainder of the calendar, the parties may mutually agree to use any such days as make up days instead of adding days to the end of the calendar. Teachers shall be required to work and shall receive no additional compensation for the days/hours added to the calendar to make- up the "Act of God" days/hours that are required to be rescheduled.
- c. In the event that the rescheduling of instructional days at the end of the school year interferes with a Teacher's verified scheduled return to school to upgrade

his/her skills, the Teacher may choose to:

- i. Use his/her personal leave
- i. Use his/her paid leave
- ii. Use unpaid leave time
- d. If, at any time during the life of this Agreement, it becomes lawful to count as days of pupil instruction, days when pupil instruction is not provided due to conditions not within the control of school authorities, then only paragraph a. of this section shall apply.
- 5. Attendance at the school on workdays provided at the end of the first and second terms of a trimester schedule or at the end of the first semester of a traditional schedule for grading purposes is at the discretion of the teacher. These tasks may also be accomplished from home. On all other work days, teachers are to report to school and may be dismissed prior to the normal work schedule at the District's discretion.

ARTICLE XIII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

- 1. A claim by a Teacher or the Association that there has been a violation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement may be processed as a grievance as hereinafter provided.
- 2. It is the intent of this Article to establish a means for prompt adjustment of a grievance at the school level with the Teacher and the immediate Supervisor. A Teacher with a complaint shall, within thirty (30) calendar days of alleged violation or misapplication, first state his/her complaint to his/her immediate Supervisor. If, at the end of fourteen (14) calendar days, the problem is not satisfactorily settled, the grievance procedure may be implemented within the succeeding fourteen (14) calendar days.
 - <u>Step 1.</u> The signed written grievance shall be presented to the Superintendent with copies to the immediate supervisor and the Association. Within seven (7) calendar days, a meeting will be held among the aggrieved Teacher, the Association representative, and the Superintendent. If an agreement is reached, written copies of the disposition shall be furnished to the parties involved. If no agreement is reached, then, within seven (7) calendar days.
 - <u>Step 2.</u> The written grievance shall be submitted to the Board of Education for a hearing. Said hearing is to take place at the first regularly scheduled Board of Education meeting after receipt of the grievance, unless timelines have been changed by mutual agreement as provided in paragraph D of this article. If no agreement is reached within seven (7) calendar days after the first regular Board meeting following the hearing, then, within fourteen (14) calendar days:
 - <u>Step 3.</u> The grievance may be submitted to arbitration by the Association. The Arbitrator will be selected according to the rules and procedures of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration proceedings shall be held consistent with the Michigan Uniform Arbitration Act, Act 371 of 2012.
 - a. He/she shall have no power to: establish salary structure, add to, subtract from, disregard, alter or modify any terms of this Agreement.
 - b. He/she shall have no power to rule on any matters regarding: termination or failure to re-employ probationary Teachers, and the evaluation appraisal.
 - c. He/she shall have no power to change any practice, policy, or rule of the Board nor limit the authority of the Board, regarding any such matters or action taken by the Board. The Arbitrator shall have power to rule that a practice, policy or rule of

- the Board is in violation of the Agreement. Then Article XI, Section 4., will take precedence.
- d. He/she shall have no power to rule on any claim or complaint for which there is a remedial procedure or recourse established by law or by regulation having the force of law, including any matter subject to the procedures specified in the Teacher's Tenure Act (Act IV Public Acts, extra session, of 1937 of Michigan as amended).
- e. The decision of the Arbitrator will be binding on both parties.
- 3. The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Association and the Board.
- 4. The time limits provided in the Article shall be strictly observed, but may be extended by written agreement of the parties. In the event a grievance is filed after May 15 of any year and strict adherence to the time limits may result in hardship of any party, the Board shall use its best efforts to process such grievance prior to the end of the school term or as soon thereafter as possible.
- 5. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by either party against any party in interest.
- 6. All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance will be filed separately from the personnel files of the participants.
- 7. Forms for filing grievances will be as that appearing in Appendix 1 A and 1 B.
- 8. Every effort shall be made to avoid interruption of classroom activities and to avoid the involvement of pupils in all phases of the grievance procedure.
- 9. The District will, upon request, provide the Association with pertinent records which may be required by the Association to process grievances under this Agreement.
- 10. Nothing contained herein will deprive any Teacher of any legal right which he/she presently has, provided that if a Teacher elects to pursue any legal or statutory remedy such election will bar any further or subsequent proceedings for relief under the provisions of this Article.
- 11. The Association on behalf of a group or class of Teachers may initiate the grievance procedure at Step 1.

ARTICLE XIV DEDUCTIONS

The following deductions from a Teacher's pay will be made by the District business office:

- 1. Those covered by law (as the law directs).
- 2. Insurance (deducted as authorized and paid directly to the respective insurance company).
- 3. Financial Institutions Direct deposit to a financial institution into a general checking or savings account as authorized and permitted by law.
 - a. The parties agree that every Teacher suffered or permitted to work will be required each school year to sign an individual contract of employment as provided in Section 380.1231 of the School Code. Every such contract shall contain the following:

"This contract is subject to a collective labor agreement heretofore or hereafter negotiated by the Board and the exclusive bargaining representative of Teachers employed by the Board and Board policies. The terms of such collective labor agreement and Board policies are incorporated herein and by accepting this contract, you agree to be bound by all such terms."

ARTICLE XV MISCELLANEOUS

- 1. The cost of reproducing the final signed Master Agreement will be shared equally by the Bullock Creek School District and the Bullock Creek Education Association.
- 2. The District and the Association shall keep a file for the purpose of receiving suggestions, for deletions, additions or revisions of this document. (Suggestions to be exchanged in writing). This will be a continuing process to assist in future negotiations.
- Individual Teacher contracts for all Teachers so recommended will be tendered the first
 work day following the regular May Board of Education meeting and must be signed and
 returned to the Superintendent within ten (10) working days after being received by the
 Teacher.
 - It is specifically agreed by the Bullock Creek Education Association that in the event that the District is required by the State Department of Education to create a deficit elimination plan, individual contracts will not be binding on the District.
- 4. The school calendar shall be coordinated with the other schools in the Intermediate School District per the Revised School Code as nearly as possible in order to provide better student services.
- 5. Teachers will be given at least one day at the end of each semester to work on compiling school records and completing necessary documents.
- 6. The District will provide in-service Programs during each semester. The purpose of in-service is to offer relevant and productive opportunities for professional growth for the educational staff of the Bullock Creek Schools. There shall be a committee with representatives from each of the District's school buildings established for the purpose of planning in-service meetings.
- 7. The District will provide for Parent-Teacher Conferences during each semester. The purpose of Parent-Teacher Conferences is to provide better communication between parents and Teachers of their student's progress. If the normal workday is altered to accommodate working parents for Parent-Teacher Conferences, then the District shall provide compensatory time.
- 8. The Association may submit a proposed school calendar to the Board of Education for the forthcoming year each year prior to January 1. The Board will give this proposal reasonable consideration in developing the best school calendar for the forthcoming year. A typical school calendar will include the following dates:

- a. Teachers report for duty
- b. Classes commence
- c. All legal holidays
- d. Periodic recesses (such as Christmas and Thanksgiving)
- e. Last day of each semester
- f. Classes dismissed for summer vacation
- g. Teachers dismissed for summer vacation
- Newly hired Teachers shall work one additional day for orientation as scheduled in the school calendar
- 9. Any Teacher who retires from the Bullock Creek School District with an accumulation of at least one hundred (100) leave days shall receive an amount equal to the number of his/her accumulated paid leave days multiplied by 50% of the 1986-87 daily rate (\$19.00) paid to substitute teachers by the District. Retirement means when one becomes eligible and participates in the Michigan Public School Retirement Fund, qualifies for pension from same, and is proceeding to receive such pension immediately following the discontinuation of employment in the Bullock Creek School District.

If a Teacher submits a letter of retirement to the Superintendent's Office by March 1st prior to the year in which he/she plans to retire, and the Teacher has an accumulation of at least one hundred (100) leave days, then the retiring Teacher shall receive a lump sum payment at the time of retirement in the amount equal to the number of his/her accumulated paid leave days multiplied by \$40.00. The Superintendent may waive this deadline in the event that life-altering events, which cannot be controlled by the retiring Teacher, make the March 1st deadline unreasonable. If the deadline is waived, the decision of the Superintendent is final and non-precedent setting. Employees hired after July 1, 2019 will be capped at 160 sick days for the paid benefit.

To the extent allowed by law, the payment will be placed in a 457 or 403b Special Pay Plan, at the employee's discretion, set up in collaboration with Bullock Creek Schools and the Bullock Creek Education Association.

10. A Teacher must have worked at least one day for the District before being eligible to receive any fringe benefits afforded by this Agreement. Teachers working part time, less than seven (7) hours per day, shall receive only a prorated portion of salary and fringe benefits afforded by this Agreement.

- 11. The District shall endeavor to provide a copy of the Board's preliminary agenda, including the Board Packet minus any materials deemed privileged or confidential if any, for the regular monthly meetings prior to said meetings.
- 12. <u>WAIVER</u>. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties, after the exercise of that right and opportunity, are set forth in the Agreement. Therefore, the District and the Association, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.
- 13. <u>ENTIRE AGREEMENT</u>. This contract constitutes the sole and entire existing Agreement between the parties in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment or other conditions of employment which shall prevail during the term of the contract. It supersedes and cancels all prior practices, whether oral or written, and expresses all obligations of, and restrictions imposed upon, the District and the Association. All matters or subjects not herein covered have been satisfactorily adjusted or waived by the parties for the life of this Agreement. This contract is subject to amendment, alteration or additions only by a subsequent written agreement.
- 14. Except for Teachers on FMLA Leave and other leaves with district provided insurance, Teachers who go into deduct (have used all leave time including sick and personal days) shall have the daily percentage cost of their benefits deducted from their pay. (This will be divided by 192 days.) Every year, each member would receive a calculated daily rate of benefits, to know what amount they would be paying for each day.
- 15. Any complaint against a Teacher by any parent, student, or other person, which is to be incorporated into the Teacher's personnel file, shall be called to the attention of the Teacher promptly. The Teacher shall have the right to attach a response to any document in his/her personnel file limited to five (5) 8 ½" x 11" pages. The Teacher's reply shall be attached to the file copy of the material in question. Any material placed in the file that is found to be inappropriate or in error shall be expunged from the file, unless prohibited by law.

- 16. A Teacher shall receive notification from the school office of the pending visit to a particular class by a parent or guardian of a member of said class. This notification shall be issued to the affected Teacher as soon as the office is aware of the parent's intention to visit.
- 17. The Bullock Creek School District and the Bullock Creek Education Association will collaborate to fill vacancies in the substitute teaching positions as they may arise. It is the expectation that administration and teachers will follow the established process of utilizing the AESOP substitute teacher system. Teachers will input absences into the AESOP sub system. When a position is not filled, administrators will call substitute teachers registered in AESOP to fill the vacancy. In the event that this process is followed and the position is still not filled, a notification will be sent to all staff within the building of the identified vacancy and Teacher(s) may fill the sub vacancy during their preparation period. A teacher filling in as a sub will receive compensation in one of two ways:
 - a. They may elect to receive a \$20.00 stipend paid out during the next available pay period
 - b. They may elect to receive two hours of sick leave which may only be used at the time of retirement under the guidelines stipulated in Article XV Section 9 of the Master Agreement. This form in Appendix 7 is to be completed by the subbing teacher and approved by the building principal upon completion of the filled need. Teacher will submit the request for compensation form to office secretary and will be submitted to the payroll department in the district central office.
 - 18. Upon the request of either the Bullock Creek School District or the Bullock Creek Education Association, if mutual consent, a reopener for negotiations in regard to health insurances may take place after rates have been received each fall.
 - 19. Association members choosing to fill a role in the Bullock Creek School District outside of their contractual duties and unrelated to any role paid through schedule B will be considered separate from any evaluation of duties related to contractual teaching duties. Exceptions to this agreement would include any activity that is not consistent with the standards of the teaching profession and the law as outlined in Article III of the Master Agreement. In addition, contractual teaching obligations shall be fulfilled first before agreeing to fulfill alternate non-teaching responsibilities. Training and testing related to alternate duties shall be completed on the individual teacher's personal time. In the rare circumstance that additional training is required for this alternate role and there are no times available to schedule the training

outside of the teaching day, the district will allow the employee to use conference time to attend the training in appreciation for their willingness to contribute to the district.

ARTICLE XVI COMPENSATION

1. General

- a. This Article, in its entirety, represents compensation to be paid for certified teaching personnel under this Contract.
- b. Adjustments shall be made on the salary schedule twice annually. The deadlines for submission of documentation, which would include a written request and an official college transcript(s) from the registrar, for salary adjustments shall be:
 - i. September 1st and if approved, the Teacher shall receive the rate increase for 100% of the school calendar, or
 - i. January 15th and if approved, the Teacher shall receive the rate increase for 50% of the school calendar. Failure to make a proper request and submit official college transcript(s) from the registrar would invalidate the adjustment for that time period.
- c. To qualify for a higher category on the salary schedule:
 - i. All advanced study hours must be in an approved program by an accredited college or university that will qualify a Teacher for certification or an endorsement.
 - i. Advanced study hours which do not meet these requirements, but which are deemed valuable in the teaching assignment or to the District, may be applied to qualify a Teacher for a higher category on the salary schedule if these hours are approved by the Superintendent prior to the Teacher completing the course of study. If the Superintendent denies the request, then the Teacher may appeal to a committee that consists of the Teacher's immediate supervisor, the Superintendent of Schools, one other District designee, and three designees appointed by the Association prior to the Teacher completing the course of study.
 - ii. A Tuition Reimbursement Fund is established in the amount of \$10,000 so that members of the B.C.E.A. may be reimbursed, or partially reimbursed, for their advanced study hours in accord with the criteria established in 3.a. and b. To be eligible for reimbursement Teachers will need to be an employee of the school district at the time they take the class and at the time of reimbursement, and will need to submit the following to the Superintendent's Office by October 1st:

Copies of already-paid tuition receipts from the previous October 1st through September 30th time frame.

Copies of corresponding transcripts, report cards or other documentation demonstrating achievement at a minimum of level of 3.0 (B); or satisfactory, if satisfactory/ unsatisfactory.

These copies should be attached to the completed Tuition Reimbursement Request Form (see Appendix 4).

Reimbursement will be paid once annually in late October or early November. If requests exceed \$10,000 within a given October 1st through September 30th time frame, then a joint four person committee of the B.C.E.A. (2 members) and the District (2 members) will meet and determine the method for equitable distribution of funds. The B.C.E.A. will chair the committee in even numbered years; the District in odd-numbered years. Unused funds from the previous year will not carryover. Each year the fund will begin anew with a total of \$10,000.

- d. A Teacher achieving National Board Certification will be paid a \$200 stipend per year.
- e. BA degree is to be interpreted as BA degree and Provisional Certificate in the area of the Teacher assignment. Certified is to mean: Provisional; Permanent or Continuing; Professional Education; Life; State Limited Special permits or authorizations may be considered only if such persons are holders of a BA degree and are qualifying for a Provisional.
- f. The Salary Schedule is based upon the regular school calendar as set forth in Article XV, 8 and the normal bargaining unit assignment as defined in this Agreement in Article IV, "Teaching Hours" and in Article V, "Teaching Load." For Board approved assignments, a bargaining unit member (e.g., School Counselor) who is assigned to report preceding or following the regular school year will be compensated at 1/192 of his/her regular annual salary per day.
- g. Merit Pay: Pursuant to the merit pay provision of section 1250 of the Revised School Code, all bargaining unit members shall receive on off schedule payment for merit achieved in each contract year by earning 80 points pursuant to the District's merit pay program for attendance, evaluation ratings, professional

- improvement, and District contribution. The total amount of the payments shall be capped at \$7,500 unless the cap is extended by the Board of Education.
- h. "High-Low" cap: in a year in which the previous district's year's fund balance exceeds the 15% fund equity, teachers will receive an off schedule payment of an equal split of 40% of the excess above the 15% fund equity. In a year in which the previous year's fund balance is at or below 5%, steps, lanes, longevity, and scale increases shall be frozen.

2019-20 Salary Schedule \$300 Added To Each Step/Lane

Add Steps BA-30/MA 14, MA-15 14, MA-30 14

STEP	BA-0	BA-30	MA-0	MA-15	MA-30
1	\$38,332	\$40,149	\$40,149	\$41,837	\$43,591
2	\$39,137	\$40,990	\$40,990	\$42,710	\$44,503
2.5	\$39,979	\$41,865	\$41,865	\$43,623	\$45,450
3	\$40,820	\$42,741	\$42,741	\$44,537	\$46,398
3.5	\$41,692	\$43,657	\$43,657	\$45,488	\$47,388
4	\$42,565	\$44,571	\$44,571	\$46,438	\$48,378
4.5	\$43,479	\$45,525	\$45,525	\$47,429	\$49,409
5	\$44,392	\$46,477	\$46,477	\$48,420	\$50,440
5.5	\$45,344	\$47,470	\$47,470	\$49,454	\$51,515
6	\$46,294	\$48,464	\$48,464	\$50,488	\$52,590
6.5	\$47,285	\$49,499	\$49,499	\$51,564	\$53,708
7	\$48,275	\$50,535	\$50,535	\$52,640	\$54,825
7.5	\$49,310	\$51,615	\$51,615	\$53,764	\$55,994
8	\$50,344	\$52,697	\$52,697	\$54,889	\$57,163
8.5	\$51,453	\$53,821	\$53,821	\$56,059	\$58,384
9	\$52,563	\$54,946	\$54,946	\$57,230	\$59,605
9.5	\$53,653	\$56,121	\$56,121	\$58,451	\$60,871
10	\$54,744	\$57,297	\$57,297	\$59,672	\$62,137
10.5	\$56,242	\$58,520	\$58,520	\$60,944	\$63,462
11	\$57,741	\$59,743	\$59,743	\$62,214	\$64,788
11.5	\$0	\$61,017	\$61,017	\$63,543	\$66,168
12	\$0	\$62,292	\$62,292	\$64,872	\$67,547
12.5	\$0	\$63,914	\$63,914	\$66,510	\$69,205
13	\$0	\$65,538	\$65,538	\$68,148	\$70,863
14	\$0	\$65,890	\$65,890	\$68,526	\$71,269

Hourly Rate: .06614% of base \$25.35

2020-21 Salary Schedule \$300 Added To Each Step/Lane

Add Steps BA-30/MA 15, MA-15 15, MA-30 15

STEP	BA-0	BA-30	MA-0	MA-15	MA-30
1	\$38,632	\$40,449	\$40,449	\$42,137	\$43,891
2	\$39,437	\$41,290	\$41,290	\$43,010	\$44,803
2.5	\$40,279	\$42,165	\$42,165	\$43,923	\$45,750
3	\$41,120	\$43,041	\$43,041	\$44,837	\$46,698
3.5	\$41,992	\$43,957	\$43,957	\$45,788	\$47,688
4	\$42,865	\$44,871	\$44,871	\$46,738	\$48,678
4.5	\$43,779	\$45,825	\$45,825	\$47,729	\$49,709
5	\$44,692	\$46,777	\$46,777	\$48,720	\$50,740
5.5	\$45,644	\$47,770	\$47,770	\$49,754	\$51,815
6	\$46,594	\$48,764	\$48,764	\$50,788	\$52,890
6.5	\$47,585	\$49,799	\$49,799	\$51,864	\$54,008
7	\$48,575	\$50,835	\$50,835	\$52,940	\$55,125
7.5	\$49,610	\$51,915	\$51,915	\$54,064	\$56,294
8	\$50,644	\$52,997	\$52,997	\$55,189	\$57,463
8.5	\$51,753	\$54,121	\$54,121	\$56,359	\$58,684
9	\$52,863	\$55,246	\$55,246	\$57,530	\$59,905
9.5	\$53,953	\$56,421	\$56,421	\$58,751	\$61,171
10	\$55,044	\$57,597	\$57,597	\$59,972	\$62,437
10.5	\$56,542	\$58,820	\$58,820	\$61,244	\$63,762
11	\$58,041	\$60,043	\$60,043	\$62,514	\$65,088
11.5	\$0	\$61,317	\$61,317	\$63,843	\$66,468
12	\$0	\$62,592	\$62,592	\$65,172	\$67,847
12.5	\$0	\$64,214	\$64,214	\$66,810	\$69,505
13	\$0	\$65,838	\$65,838	\$68,448	\$71,163
14	\$0	\$66,190	\$66,190	\$68,826	\$71,569
15	\$0	\$66,549	\$66,549	\$69,211	\$71,982

Hourly Rate: .06614% of base \$25.55

2021-22 Salary Schedule \$300 Added To Each Step/Lane

Add Steps BA-30/MA 16, MA-15 16, MA-30 16

STEP	BA-0	BA-30	MA-0	MA-15	MA-30
1	\$38,932	\$40,749	\$40,749	\$42,437	\$44,191
2	\$39,737	\$41,590	\$41,590	\$43,310	\$45,103
2.5	\$40,579	\$42,465	\$42,465	\$44,223	\$46,050
3	\$41,420	\$43,341	\$43,341	\$45,137	\$46,998
3.5	\$42,292	\$44,257	\$44,257	\$46,088	\$47,988
4	\$43,165	\$45,171	\$45,171	\$47,038	\$48,978
4.5	\$44,079	\$46,125	\$46,125	\$48,029	\$50,009
5	\$44,992	\$47,077	\$47,077	\$49,020	\$51,040
5.5	\$45,944	\$48,070	\$48,070	\$50,054	\$52,115
6	\$46,894	\$49,064	\$49,064	\$51,088	\$53,190
6.5	\$47,885	\$50,099	\$50,099	\$52,164	\$54,308
7	\$48,875	\$51,135	\$51,135	\$53,240	\$55,425
7.5	\$49,910	\$52,215	\$52,215	\$54,364	\$56,594
8	\$50,944	\$53,297	\$53,297	\$55,489	\$57,763
8.5	\$52,053	\$54,421	\$54,421	\$56,659	\$58,984
9	\$53,163	\$55,546	\$55,546	\$57,830	\$60,205
9.5	\$54,253	\$56,721	\$56,721	\$59,051	\$61,471
10	\$55,344	\$57,897	\$57,897	\$60,272	\$62,737
10.5	\$56,842	\$59,120	\$59,120	\$61,544	\$64,062
11	\$58,341	\$60,343	\$60,343	\$62,814	\$65,388
11.5	\$0	\$61,617	\$61,617	\$64,143	\$66,768
12	\$0	\$62,892	\$62,892	\$65,472	\$68,147
12.5	\$0	\$64,514	\$64,514	\$67,110	\$69,805
13	\$0	\$66,138	\$66,138	\$68,748	\$71,463
14	\$0	\$66,490	\$66,490	\$69,126	\$71,869
15	\$0	\$66,849	\$66,849	\$69,511	\$72,282
16	\$0	\$67,214	\$67,214	\$69,903	\$72,702

Hourly Rate: .06614% of base \$25.75

- i. During the 2016-17 school year:
 - Each Teacher with at least fourteen (14) but less than forty-one (41) years in the Bullock Creek School District will have added to his/her yearly salary a longevity payment. The following longevity payment schedule is implemented:

Longevity Payment Schedule

Year	Amount
14-16	\$300
17-19	\$600
20	\$900
21	\$990
22	\$1,080
23	\$1,170
24	\$1,260
25	\$1,350
26	\$1,950
27	\$2,400
28	\$3,600
29	\$3,600
30	\$3,600
31-40	\$1,200

Applicable to teachers with 25 or more years of service beginning in the 2016-17 school year.

*Longevity Payment Schedule

Year	Amount
14-16	\$300
17-19	\$600
20	\$900
21	\$990
22	\$1,080
23	\$4,200
24	\$4,200
25	\$4,200
26	\$3,000
27	\$1,950
28	\$1,350
29	\$1,350
30	\$1,260
31-40	\$1,200

^{*}Applicable to teachers with 14 to 24 years of service beginning in the 2016-17 school year.

ii. In implementing the above paragraph, the parties do hereby agree that a Teacher who reaches his/her fourteenth (14th) year anniversary date after school starts but prior to the beginning of the second semester, will receive a longevity payment of \$150.00 for that school year. Teachers who reach their fourteenth (14th) year anniversary date in the second semester shall begin receiving longevity pay in the following school year.

2. Auxiliary Compensation

- a. All paid duties will be assigned by the Board of Education or their delegated Administrator, who shall develop job descriptions for such extra-curricular activities. Such assignments will be made subject to mutual consent except for activities marked with an asterisk (*) below. Those activities marked with an asterisk (*) may be appointed if no volunteers are available. The Administrator in charge shall assign all other non-paid duties. Extra duty assignments under this Article do not come under the provision of Article V pertaining to Teacher load.
- b. Providing that the Board elects to sponsor such functions or activities and also providing that the persons to whom they are assigned fall within the Bargaining Unit, then the compensation for such extra duties shall be as in the following

sections:

c. Extra-curricular pay shall be calculated by multiplying the salary at the correct experience step, up to step 8, of the BA salary schedule by the percent specified for a particular extra-curricular position. To earn an experience increment, a person must have served successfully in said position for one year. Teachers currently being paid for a particular position shall not receive a reduction in pay for said position because of this calculation procedure.

	CLASSIFICATION I - 10.5%	
	Head Varsity Boys' Baseball Coach	1
	Head Varsity Boys' Basketball Coach	1
	Head Varsity Boys' Football Coach	1
*	Head Varsity Boys' Track Coach	1
*	Head Varsity Boys' Wrestling Coach	1
	Head Varsity Girls' Basketball Coach	1
	Head Varsity Girls' Softball Coach	1
*	Head Varsity Girls' Track Coach	1
	Head Varsity Girls' Volleyball Coach	1
*	Summer Band	2
	CLASSIFICATION II - 7%	
*	Director, Extra-Curricular Instrumentalists	2
	Freshman Coaches	1
	Head Boys' Cross Country Coach	1
	Head Girls' Cross Country Coach	1
	Head Boys' Tennis Coach	1
	Head girls' Tennis Coach	1
	Junior Varsity Baseball Coach	1
	Junior Varsity Basketball Coach	1
	Junior Varsity Football Coaches	2
	Junior Varsity Softball Coach	1
	Junior Varsity Girls' Volleyball Coach	1
	Varsity Assistants	1
	Varsity Golf	1

Varsity Cheerleading	1
Web Developer	1
CLASSIFICATION III - 5%	
Business Professionals of America (BPA)	1
Forensics	1
High School Play - (In the event plays are offered as part of a regular class activity they will not be compensated as an extra-curricular activity.)	2
Intramural Coaches/Weightlifting	1
Junior Varsity Tennis Coach	1
Junior Varsity Cheerleading	1
Middle School Baseball Coach	2
Middle School Boys' Track Coach	2
Middle School Cross Country	1
Middle School Girls' Track Coach	2
Middle School Student Council	1
Middle School Softball Coach	2
Middle School Play - (In the event plays are offered as part of a regular class activity they will not be compensated as an extra-curricular activity.)	2
School Improvement Leader per building	1
Senior Class Sponsors	2
Senior High Student Council	2
Senior High National Honor Society	2
Yearbook - Middle School	1
7th Grade Basketball Coaches	1
7th Grade Volleyball Coaches	1
7th & 8th Grade Wrestling Coach	1

	8th Grade Basketball Coach	1
	8th Grade Volleyball Coach	1
	Student Assistance Coordinator	1
	CLASSIFICATION IV - 3%	L
	5th & 6th Grade Coaches (1.5% for each grade)	
*	Junior Class sponsors	2
	CLASSIFICATION V - 2.5%	
*	School Paper	
*	Yearbook - High School	1
	CLASSIFICATION VI - 2%	
	Elementary Student Council	1
*	Foreign Language Club Sponsor	1
*	Freshman Class Sponsors	2
	Middle School Cheerleading Coach	2
*	Sophomore Class Sponsors	2
	Writing Club	1
	CLASSIFICATION VII - 1%	
	Student Assistance Team	7
	Safety Patrol	1
	High School Math Club	1
	Middle School Math Club	1
	ICT Team(s)	4-6

Extra Curricular Pay Schedules Base is BA, Steps 1-8

2019-20

STEPS	BASE	14.00%	10.50%	9.00%	7.00%	5.00%	3.00%	2.50%	2.00%	1.00%
1	\$38,332	\$5,366	\$4,025	\$3,450	\$2,683	\$1,917	\$1,150	\$958	\$767	\$383
2	\$39,137	\$5,479	\$4,109	\$3,522	\$2,740	\$1,957	\$1,174	\$978	\$783	\$391
3	\$40,820	\$5,715	\$4,286	\$3,674	\$2,857	\$2,041	\$1,225	\$1,021	\$816	\$408
4	\$42,565	\$5,959	\$4,469	\$3,831	\$2,980	\$2,128	\$1,277	\$1,064	\$851	\$426
5	\$44,392	\$6,215	\$4,661	\$3,995	\$3,107	\$2,220	\$1,332	\$1,110	\$888	\$444
6	\$46,294	\$6,481	\$4,861	\$4,166	\$3,241	\$2,315	\$1,389	\$1,157	\$926	\$463
7	\$48,275	\$6,759	\$5,069	\$4,345	\$3,379	\$2,414	\$1,448	\$1,207	\$966	\$483
8	\$50,344	\$7,048	\$5,286	\$4,531	\$3,524	\$2,517	\$1,510	\$1,259	\$1,007	\$503

2020-21

STEPS	BASE	14.00%	10.50%	9.00%	7.00%	5.00%	3.00%	2.50%	2.00%	1.00%
1	\$38,632	\$5,408	\$4,056	\$3,477	\$2,704	\$1,932	\$1,159	\$966	\$773	\$386
2	\$39,437	\$5,521	\$4,141	\$3,549	\$2,761	\$1,972	\$1,183	\$986	\$789	\$394
3	\$41,120	\$5,757	\$4,318	\$3,701	\$2,878	\$2,056	\$1,234	\$1,028	\$822	\$411
4	\$42,865	\$6,001	\$4,501	\$3,858	\$3,001	\$2,143	\$1,286	\$1,072	\$857	\$429
5	\$44,692	\$6,257	\$4,693	\$4,022	\$3,128	\$2,235	\$1,341	\$1,117	\$894	\$447
6	\$46,594	\$6,523	\$4,892	\$4,193	\$3,262	\$2,330	\$1,398	\$1,165	\$932	\$466
7	\$48,575	\$6,801	\$5,100	\$4,372	\$3,400	\$2,429	\$1,457	\$1,214	\$972	\$486
8	\$50,644	\$7,090	\$5,318	\$4,558	\$3,545	\$2,532	\$1,519	\$1,266	\$1,013	\$506

2020-22

STEPS	BASE	14.00%	10.50%	9.00%	7.00%	5.00%	3.00%	2.50%	2.00%	1.00%
1	\$38,932	\$5,450	\$4,088	\$3,504	\$2,725	\$1,947	\$1,168	\$973	\$779	\$389
2	\$39,737	\$5,563	\$4,172	\$3,576	\$2,782	\$1,987	\$1,192	\$993	\$795	\$397
3	\$41,420	\$5,799	\$4,349	\$3,728	\$2,899	\$2,071	\$1,243	\$1,036	\$828	\$414
4	\$43,165	\$6,043	\$4,532	\$3,885	\$3,022	\$2,158	\$1,295	\$1,079	\$863	\$432
5	\$44,992	\$6,299	\$4,724	\$4,049	\$3,149	\$2,250	\$1,350	\$1,125	\$900	\$450
6	\$46,894	\$6,565	\$4,924	\$4,220	\$3,283	\$2,345	\$1,407	\$1,172	\$938	\$469
7	\$48,875	\$6,843	\$5,132	\$4,399	\$3,421	\$2,444	\$1,466	\$1,222	\$978	\$489
8	\$50,944	\$7,132	\$5,349	\$4,585	\$3,566	\$2,547	\$1,528	\$1,274	\$1,019	\$509

- d. The establishment of compensation for new activities approved by the Board, shall be determined by the amount of responsibility and time involved outside of the regular school day. The amount of compensation subject to the Board approval, will be recommended by a committee consisting of equal representatives of the Association and Administration.
- e. For Summer School Teaching including preparation time over and above the regular school year, the following remuneration would apply:
 - i. The hourly rate for these positions shall be .06614% of the base salary for the year in which the activity is offered.
 - i. The above schedule shall apply to actual teaching time incorporating the fact that Teachers must do preparation outside of actual teaching time for which

they are compensated, in this scale, at the pro-rated amount of one hour per seven hours of teaching time.

This represents the full and complete agreement between the parties regarding the compensation for Adult Education, High School Completion/Alternative Education, Drivers Education and Summer School Teachers.

- f. If the Board elects to utilize Teachers in the following capacities, the rates shall be as follows:
 - i. Ticket takers.
 - 1. Basketball ticket takers shall receive \$12.00 per game.
 - 2. Ticket takers at football games will be paid \$12.00 per game.
 - 3. Ticket takers at all other athletic events shall be paid \$12.00 per night.
 - i. <u>Scorekeepers</u>. Scorekeepers for interscholastic basketball contests will be paid at the rate of \$12.00 per game.
 - ii. Statisticians. Football statisticians shall be paid \$12.00 per night.
 - iv. <u>Timers</u>. Timers for varsity football games shall be paid \$12.00 per night and for all other interscholastic contests shall be paid \$12.00 per game.
 - v. Other assistants as approved by the Superintendent may be utilized at the rate of \$12.00 per game.
- g. Authorized mileage on school business is to be paid at the Board approved District rate.
- h. A J.V. coach will receive I/2 credit for each year, if moved to the varsity level.
 - i. Any coach who is requested to report by the District prior to the start of or after the end of the regular school calendar year and does so, will be paid \$20.00 per day.
- j. The District shall contribute \$1,500 total each contract year for CTE.
- k. A Teacher receiving Auxiliary Compensation may, with mutual agreement of the District, use preparation time to supervise students who are in the activity for

which said Teacher is receiving the compensation.

- I. A Teacher required by the District to be out of his/her classroom to attend to duties resulting from an extracurricular assignment will be released from his/her teaching responsibilities with full pay and without losing any of his/her accumulated paid leaves. The District will see that said classrooms are supervised on such occasions.
- m. Teachers who work on special/nontraditional projects and on after-school intervention/remedial activities authorized by the Board outside of the regular school day shall be compensated at the rate of .06614% of the base salary for the year in which the activity is offered per hour for each hour of service. In selecting Teachers, the Administration shall first seek volunteers from the relevant area. A project shall be defined as an activity which requires a specific outcome as defined by the Administration. Teacher involvement in special/nontraditional projects shall be voluntary.

n. Curriculum Coordinators.

- If the Board of Education determines the need for Curriculum Coordinators, a current Teacher shall hold the position. The position shall be voluntary and if no volunteers are available, the Superintendent or his designee and the Association shall meet and resolve the issue.
- In the event that the District would require the Curriculum Coordinator to perform duties during the regular school day, a substitute will be provided at no expense to the Teacher.
- Compensation for the Curriculum Coordinator positions will be as follows:

Coordinators will be compensated with a \$3,000 per year stipend to be paid 1/2 in December and 1/2 in June of the given school year.

Coordinators will be those identified in the following areas: PE/Health K-12, Fine Arts K-12, CRE/Counseling K-12, Social Studies K-12, Science K-12, Mathematics K-12, and English/Language Arts K-12/Spanish.

- Primary responsibilities of Curriculum Coordinators are those spelled out in the following agreement:
 - 1. BCSD Curriculum Coordinator Program

Curriculum Coordinator positions for ELA/Spanish, Math, Science, Social Studies, CTE/Counseling, Fine Arts and PE/Health will be established in the Bullock Creek School District under the following guideline:

2. Primary Responsibilities

- a. Work with the Director of Curriculum to ensure that all teachers have the necessary information and resources to implement the Content Expectations, create curriculum documentation such as pacing guides, and syllabi while using sound teaching strategies.
- b. Serve as a resource specialist and disseminate current information and materials related to the curriculum to staff in a timely manner.
- c. Plan and facilitate 3-6 meetings each school year with staff for professional development and instructional materials selection. Publish meeting agenda and notes as well as a year-end summary to the Director of Curriculum and those on the assigned curriculum team.
- d. Participate in planning meetings with the Director of Curriculum and other coordinators quarterly. In coordination with the Director of Curriculum, lead the faculty in the development of common assessment designed to measure student achievement in identified areas. Assist in preparation of parent informational materials in identified area.
- e. Attend the District Wide School Improvement Team meetings when requested by the Director of Curriculum. Attends, as requested by building administrators, school improvement planning meetings, and participates in state and regional activities in related content areas as requested.
- f. Submit any required reports and documents in a timely manner and take responsibility as determined by the Director of Curriculum.
- g. Coordinators will report to the Director of Curriculum each for all

seven coordinator positions.

n. Elementary After School Programs

- i. At-Risk Intervention positions at Floyd Elementary, Pine River Elementary and Bullock Creek Elementary School will be paid at the hourly rate of .06614% of base salary for the year in which the activity is offered as referenced in the Master Agreement.
- ii. The following duties and responsibilities are applicable for the At-Risk Intervention position:

Attendance, tutor and otherwise assist students developing writing skills by utilizing a software writing tutorial package, track student progress, student discipline in cooperation with Building the Principal, coordinate technology needs with the Technology Department, limited lesson planning to include selection of appropriate writing prompts from the software package, coordination of duties of support paraprofessionals, individual student instruction will include conferencing with students based upon the results of the writing rubric. There will be no whole class instruction, grading of homework or correcting of papers required of the teachers in these positions. The student/adult ratio shall not exceed 25 to 1.

o. Middle School and High School After School Programs

- i. The positions would be paid at the Summer School rate of pay as outlined in the Master Agreement in Article XVI. Section 2 (e) at .06614% of the base salary for the year in which the activity is offered.
- ii. If at any time one or all of these positions are offered to students to be taken during the regular school day as defined by the Master Agreement, the pay rate will be determined according to Article XVI. Section 1 as a regular teaching assignment.
- iii. The following duties and responsibilities were outlined for the

At-Risk Intervention positions:

Attendance, coordinate/facilitate student homework completion, tutor and otherwise assist students in completion of classroom requirements, coordinate tutorial help from a variety of sources including from NHS, facilitate return of completed assignments to classroom instructors, track students' progress, and coordinate technology needs with the Technology Department. There will be no whole class instruction, lesson planning, grading of homework or correcting of papers required of the teacher in this position, however, individual student instruction will be limited to tutoring as needed by each student.

iv. The following duties and responsibilities were outlined for the Credit Recovery positions.

Attendance, assistance with technology, trouble shooting, communication with the Michigan Virtual High School staff, communication with the Technology Department, and assisting students in navigating websites. There will be no instruction, lesson planning, grading of work or correction activity required of the teacher in this position.

- v. It is further the understanding that the Credit Recovery Program will only be offered at no cost to students who are full-time students enrolled during the regular school day, who have failed a course offered during the regular school day twice, and/or who are in trouble with meeting the graduation requirements.
- 3. Each Teacher will receive equal biweekly payments commencing with the first regular pay of the school year. Teachers may exercise the option to have their pay spread through the school year or throughout the school year and the following summer.
- 4. All salary payments shall be distributed biweekly on Thursdays through electronic direct deposit to a financial institution of the Teacher's choice.
- 5. There shall be a standing committee developed composed of two (2)

members appointed by the Board and two (2) members appointed by the Association. It shall be the task of the committee to review and/or revise extracurricular positions and their classification. For a position to be reviewed by the committee the person(s) requesting such review must develop a job description for the position which includes the responsibilities of the position, the outcomes expected and the amount of outside time anticipated for the successful completion of the position. The committee, after reviewing the position shall make a recommendation to the Board of Education whose decision regarding the position shall be final.

6. The Bullock Creek School District believes that the New Teacher Induction/Teacher Mentoring process is a cooperative arrangement between peers in which new members of the teaching profession are provided ongoing assistance and support by skilled and experienced teachers. This relationship should be collegial in nature, and all experiences should be directed toward the development and refinement of the knowledge, skills and interactions necessary for effective teaching. This process is expected to be mutually beneficial for all parties involved and to result in improved instructional practice and professional performance.

On a voluntary basis, Tenured Teachers may serve as Mentor Teachers to those Teachers on staff that are probationary. Each year after discussion and agreement with the Mentor and Mentee, the supervising Administrator of the Probationary Teacher will have the parties sign a Mentorship Agreement (Appendix 5) verifying the assignment. The appointed mentor teacher will be compensated on the following scale and will be expected to meet with the probationary teacher for the minimum number of hours listed outside of the school day in an effort to assist the probationary teacher in improving his/her teaching skills.

For the mentoring of:

1st-year probationary teacher	\$600	27 hours
2nd-year probationary teacher	\$400	18 hours
3rd-year probationary teacher	\$100	5 hours

In the event that a Tenure Teacher were to be newly hired by the District, the assigned Mentor Teacher will be paid One Hundred

Dollars (\$100.00) per year for each year and will be expected to meet for at least 5 hours outside of the school day each year until the Mentee earns tenure status. In the event that a Probationary Teacher were to be newly hired by the District with experience from a previous district, the assigned Mentor Teacher will be paid Four Hundred Dollars (\$400.00) per year for the first year of service and be expected to meet for at least 18 hours outside of the school day for the first year and then One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) per year and be expected to meet for 5 hours outside of the school day for the 2nd and 3rd year of probationary status in the Bullock Creek School District.

The purpose of a mentor is to assist, inform, and coach probationary teachers who are new to the teaching profession in the rights, responsibilities, and ethics of the teaching profession. The following shall apply to mentoring:

- a. Qualified staff members will submit their intentions to become mentors by September 1 of each school year. The list of names will be maintained until the teacher requests removal from said list.
- b. Regarding appointments, the following will apply:
 - i. Appointment shall be for three (3) years unless either party requests a change, or their building principal decides it is in the best interests of the parties.
 - ii. Mentors will have no involvement in the evaluation process and the relationship will be collaborative and confidential.
 - iii. A mentor can have up to two (2) probationary teachers if desired.

c. Mentor Responsibilities:

i. The mentor shall keep a log of the time devoted to the mentoring process for confirmation to the Administration (see subsection 6). The log of contacts will indicate the dates of contacts, the type of contact, the topic(s) addressed, the time spent and the initials of the mentor and probationary teacher. The log will be submitted to the building principal throughout the school year as mentoring is conducted and must be submitted by May 15 each year for payment of the mentor stipend.

Any time spent together before or after the normal school year shall be at the option of the mentor and probationary teacher. Time commitments may change due to revision of state mandates.

- ii. The mentor will attend in-service programs designed to assist the mentor with responsibilities such as cognitive coaching, peer analysis, instructional effectiveness, and time management. The mentor will conduct in-service sessions for the assigned probationary teacher(s) as needed. The minimum of mentor/probationary teacher contacts should be 8 per semester with no less than 1 contact per month. The contacts will include the following activities:
 - Individual conferencing 2-5
 - Classroom observations (at least 2 per year) 2-3
 - Group in-service involving the mentor and probationary teacher
 1-2

Research shows that the eight most common problems for beginning teachers include:

- Classroom discipline
- Planning lessons and class work
- Motivating students
- Dealing with students' individual differences
- Evaluating student work
- Dealing with students' personal problems
- Relating to parents
- Coping with a lack of instructional resources

It is expected that each of these topics will be reviewed with the probationary teacher during the individual conferences or in-services provided by the mentor teacher.

d. If, in the opinion of the Administration, the services of mentor teacher shall be deemed unsatisfactory for any reason, the probationary teacher shall be reassigned to a different mentor. Pay will be prorated based on the number of days of service as a mentor.

- e. Either the mentor or the probationary employee may request to terminate the mentor-probationary employee relationship if, in either party's opinion, the relationship is not productive. The request will be given to the Building Administrator. If the request is upheld, a new mentor will be assigned to the probationary employee. Pay will be prorated based on the number of days of service as a mentor.
- f. Mentor/probationary teacher log:

Log of Mentor Contacts with Probationary Teacher's Mentor's Name: _	
Probationary Teacher:	

Date of	Type of	Topic(s) Involved in Contact Time Spent	Initia	als	
Contact	Contact		Time Spent	Mentor	Prob.

7. In recognition of services provided for completing Medicaid billing forms in order for the District to receive funds for eligible special education students, beginning in the 2007-08 school year special education Teachers, including speech therapists, who are bargaining unit members, will receive an additional \$100 above the 2006-07 funding provided by the District for each special education classroom to be used for the purchase of needed classroom supplies/materials for students as determined by the special education Teacher and approved by the Building Principal. This \$100 will come out of five percent (5%) of the total Medicaid dollars which the District received from Medicaid billing for the prior school year. In addition, the remainder of the 5% of such funds will be available through a committee comprised of the Special Education Director and the association President or a teacher chosen by the Association President to be allocated for purchase of needed special education program supplies/materials. Teachers desiring supplies/materials through this committee shall submit a written request to the Special Education Director.

ARTICLE XVII INSURANCE

 Medical Insurance. The District's medical benefit plan coverage year shall adjust to January 1 – December 31 on January 1, 2021. From July 1, 2019 - December 31, 2020, the District shall contribute 99% of the 2019 state statutory hardcaps. On January 1, 2021, the District's contribution will adjust to 98% of the 2021 state hardcap. Insurance options will be selected from the following for 2020:

MESSA Choices PPO \$500 individual/ \$1000 family Deductible 0% Coinsurance \$10/\$25/\$50 OV/UR/ER Saver Rx \$2 or \$10/\$20 or \$40

MESSA Choices PPO \$1000 individual/ \$2000 family Deductible 0% Coinsurance \$20/\$25/\$50 OV/UR/ER Saver Rx \$2 or \$10/\$20 or \$40

MESSA ABC 1 PPO \$1350 individual/\$2700 family Deductible 0% Coinsurance ABC Rx \$0, \$2 or \$10/\$20 or \$40 (HSA)

- 2. <u>Dental Insurance.</u> The District will provide dental insurance to each Teacher. The BCEA will pay ten (10%) of the premium cost. Delta Dental through the MESSA PAK with a \$1,500 maximum coverage per year per insured person on each policy.
- 3. In lieu of health insurance, a Teacher may elect the option of a cash payment through payroll or toward a current annuity program if he/she first presents documentation that he/she has other health insurance for the covered year that meets the coverage and affordability requirements of the Affordable Care Act. Additionally, the District will pay the premium for a \$10,000 Term Life AD&D insurance policy provided such a policy can be obtained at the standard rate.

The District payment will be \$125 per month.

- 4. The Board will provide LTD for each Teacher. The BCEA will pay ten (10%) of the premium cost. The LTD coverage will move to standard market amount of 66.7%. The District will continue to pay 50% of the cost of short term disability insurance (benefits identical to those in 1986-87) if requested by a Teacher.
- 5. The Board will make available and will pay for 50% of the standard premium for \$10,000 Term Life AD&D for each Teacher if requested.

6. The Board will provide VSP-2S vision insurance for each Teacher through the MESSA PAK. The BCEA will pay ten (10%) of the premium cost.

7. Stipulations:

It has been determined by the Association and the Board that it would be detrimental to both the Association and the Board if a Teacher should apply for any part of this insurance program in the event he/she is already covered by the spouse's insurance coverage and such application would result in dual coverage.

Any spouse (of a Teacher hired after December 1, 1985) eligible for coverage under any other group medical or health insurance plan(s) as an employee shall be excluded from coverage as outlined in paragraphs 1. and 2. of ARTICLE XVII. Medical health insurance benefits for such a spouse, if he/she is insurable, shall be provided if requested and paid for by the Teacher through payroll deduction.

If at any time the bargaining unit employee's insurance subscription moves from two-person coverage to full-family because of the addition of children to the coverage, the spouse may be added to the subscription at no additional cost other than what is calculated under the hard cap formula referenced in Article XVII, regardless of whether the spouse has insurance available through his/her own employer. If at any time the bargaining unit employee's coverage with self and children, would qualify them for only two-person coverage, the spouse will have to be removed from coverage and go back to his/her employer's insurance coverage during his/her open enrollment with his/her employer.

It shall be the responsibility of the Teachers to see that all necessary insurance documents are filed with the insurance carrier and that any family changes be reported to the carrier.

- 8. An Insurance Review Committee shall be formed to focus on various insurance options. The Committee shall be made up of an equal number of District and Association members. Insurance consultants may be scheduled to meet with the Committee when appropriate. Review of insurance options will take into account the following:
- a. Reputation of the insurer for providing quality service.
- b. Availability and cost of care for participants.
- c. Cost effectiveness of the premiums as compared to the coverage for participants.

A chairperson shall be selected alternately by the Association and the District. The party selecting the first chairperson shall be decided by the flip of a coin. Upon the request of either party, the Committee shall be activated at the beginning of any school year preceding the expiration of a Master Agreement.

The work of the Committee shall conclude with a recommendation presented to the Contract Review Committee by April 1 of the year in which the Master Agreement will expire.

ARTICLE XVIII REVIEW COMMITTEE

- 1. Organization of the Review Committee
 - a. Representatives of the District and the Association may meet informally once a month from September through May for the purpose of reviewing the implementation of this Master Agreement and of resolving problems which may arise. It is the intent of this committee to meet once a month by mutual consent of both parties. Additional meetings may be scheduled at mutual request. If both parties agree, in years the contract ends, the May Contract Review session may be suspended in lieu of a meeting to establish formal negotiations ground rules and future meeting dates.
 - b. No more than five (5) Teacher representatives shall be selected by the Association and no more than five (5) Administrator representatives shall be selected by the Superintendent. The Teacher and Administrator representatives may separately designate a Teacher chairperson and an Administrator chairperson who shall serve concurrently as co-chairperson.
 - c. The meetings of the Review Committee are not intended to bypass the grievance procedure outlined in ARTICLE XIII of this Agreement.
- Agreements arrived at by the Review Committee shall be reduced to writing in the form
 of memoranda of understanding and submitted to the Association and the Board of
 Education for approval. Upon approval by the Association and the Board of Education,
 the memorandum shall become part of the Master Agreement for the duration of the
 Agreement.

ARTICLE XIX DURATION OF AGREEMENT

The duration of the agreement will be from August 24, 2019 – August 25, 2022 or the last day prior to the first teacher report day of the 2022-2023 school year, whichever is earlier. No sooner than seven days following the State of Michigan May Revenue Consensus Meeting, but no later than May 31st of the final year of this Contract, the parties shall initiate negotiations for the purpose of entering into a successor agreement. If, pursuant to such negotiations, an agreement on the renewal or modification is not reached prior to the expiration date, this Agreement shall expire at such expiration date unless it is extended for a specific period by written mutual agreement of the parties.

The terms and conditions of employment provided in this Agreement shall remain in effect for the duration of this Agreement unless altered by mutual agreement in writing between the parties. The entire agreement or specific provisions of the agreement may be rejected, modified or terminated by an emergency manager under conditions provided in the Local Government and School District Fiscal Accountability Act, 2011 PA 4.

Bullock Creek School District

Bullock Creek Education Association

APPENDIX 1-A

GRIEVANCE FORM between the BULLOCK CREEK SCHOOL DISTRICT and the BULLOCK CREEK EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

School:	Date:
Name of Grievant:	
Building Principal:	
Name of Association Representativ	e:
Nature of Grievance, Alleged Date	of Occurrence and Relief Sought:
Signature of Grievant	 Date

APPENDIX 1-B SUPERINTENDENT LEVEL

Date filed with Superintendent:		
Date of Meeting:		
Disposition by Superintendent:		
Signature of Superintendent	Date	
	BOARD LEVEL	
Date filed with Board:		
Date of Meeting:		
Disposition by Board:		
Signature of Board President	 Date	
	ARBITRATION LEVEL	
Date Submitted to Arbitrator:		
Date of Arbitration Hearing:		
Disposition: As per arbitrator's of	decision.	

APPENDIX 2 REQUEST FOR TRANSFER

Date:	
hereby request the following transfer from:	
(include class, building, position, full-time/part-time status)	
To:	
(include class, building, position, full-time/part-time status)	
Reason for request of transfer:	
Degree Held:	
Teaching Certificate Held:	
Experience:Grade:	
Subjects:	
Signature of Teacher	

SUCH REQUESTS SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY APRIL 1ST OF THE CURRENT SCHOOL YEAR TO ASSURE CONSIDERATION BY THE DISTRICT FOR THE FOLLOWING YEAR.

APPENDIX 3 REQUEST TO DONATE PERSONAL DAYS

	Date Received by Superintendent
I,receiving days	request permission to receive Person
persona	I days from's
Number of Days	Person donating days
accumulated personal day bank. These of	day(s) will be used on the following date(s):
Dates the receiver will be absent	
Signature of Person Making Request	Signature of Person Donating Days
Date of Signing	Date of Signing
Superintendent's Signature for Approval	
Date of Signing	

APPENDIX 4 REQUEST FOR TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

		Date	e Received by Superintendent
Teacher Name:		School:	
Home Phone Num	ber:		
Number of Credits	Requested for Consid	deration:	
request reimburse	ement for already-paid	d tuition up to the a	mount of:
Course Title/Number	Semester/Term	Number of Credits	Cost Per Credit
L Teacher Signature		Date	<u> </u>

This request is for advanced study hours which comply with the criteria from Article XVI, Section 1.c.i–iii of the Master Agreement. Attached are:

- Copies of already-paid tuition receipts from the previous October 1st through September 30th time frame.
- Copies of corresponding transcripts, report cards or other documentation demonstrating achievement at a minimum level of 3.0 (B); or satisfactory, if satisfactory/unsatisfactory.

I realize reimbursement may be in full, or it may be partial. The reimbursed amount is dependent upon the quantity of the other requests being submitted and is subject to review by a joint committee of the BCEA and the District. Reimbursements will be paid once annually in late October or early November.

PLEASE SUBMIT TO THE SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE BY OCTOBER 1ST

APPENDIX 5 MENTORSHIP AGREEMENT

	Date Receive	ed by Superintenden
Mentor Teacher:		
Building Assignment:		
Probationary Teacher:		
Building Assignment:		
Payment Amount for Mentor Teacher:		
Principal's Signature	Date	
Mentor's Signature	Date	
Probationary Teacher's Signature	Date	
School Year for Assignment Period:	1	

APPENDIX 6 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OUTSIDE OF THE SCHOOL YEAR

Title of Activity:	
escription of Activity:	
ate:	
ime:	
eadline to be returned:	_
taff members volunteering to participate must sign the form below and return it to irector of Curriculum. Teachers will be compensated at .085% of the BA base so outlined in Article IV, Section 8., c. of the Master Agreement.	
ame of Teacher:Please print)	
eacher's Signature:	
ate:	

APPENDIX 7 TEACHER SUBSTITUTING ON PREP HOUR REQUEST FOR COMPENSATION

Teacher Name	
Date of Prep Hour Subbing:	
Time of Subbing:	
Name of Absent Teacher:	
Please choose one of the following option	s of compensation:
Please pay me a \$20 stipend to be paid	out on the next available pay period
retirement under the guidelines stipulat	k leave that may only be used at the time of ted in Article XV, Section 9 of the Master specific leave code for easy identification and
Teacher Signature	 Date
Principal Signature	 Date

Please send completed form to your building Secretary who will forward it to the Payroll Department in Central Office. Processing will occur on the next available pay period from the date received.

APPENDIX 8 REQUEST FOR COMPENSATION FOR UNUSED PERSONAL DAYS

	Date Received by Superintendent		
l,, r	request permission to receive \$35.00 per		
day for	personal days from my accumulated		
personal leave day bank, not to exceed fiv	ve (5) days for payment request.		
Signature of Person Making Request	Date of Signing		
Superintendent's Signature for Approval	 Date of Signing		

SUCH REQUESTS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE SUPERINTENDENT BY JUNE 1ST OF THE CURRENT SCHOOL YEAR TO ENSURE THE DISBURSEMENT BY THE DISTRICT IN THE LAST PAYROLL OF THE FISCAL YEAR.